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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Located at 3325 Pecos Street in Denver, the St. Patrick Mission Church complex, all 
in the Mission style consists of the church building itself at the south end of the 
property, the rectory at the north end, and an arcaded, covered walkway connecting 
the two. All these structures were constructed of smooth-dressed buff stone in 
alternating courses of narrow, wide, wide, narrow, etc. The roof material is red 
barrel (Mission) tile except for domes which cap the towers, these being of painted 
sheet metal.

The church is a two-story rectangular structure. On the main facade is an entrance 
porch whose roof is supported by wood beams bearing on three semi-circular arches 
which spring from stone piers. Centered above the porch is a large, segmental, 
stained and painted glass window with a segmental arched head. Above this, and ex­ 
tending above the shallow gabled tile roof, the stone wall displays the simplified 
Baroque capped curve which characterizes the Mission style. At the front corners 
of the church are square towers, the taller projecting slightly and the shorter re­ 
cessed slightly, each terminating in open columned lanterns which in turn have metal 
domes surmounted by a cross. The long sides of the nave are pierced regularly by 
stained glass windows with segmental arched heads located between engaged columns 
supporting the wood, open scissors trusses which are the main support for the roof. 
The apse projects beyond, and lower than, the nave area in a half-hexagonal plan 
without windows or openings.

The church is connected to the rectory by a narrow covered walkway whose flat roof 
is supported on both sides by stone piers and semi-circular arches. The two-story 
rectory is of the same material and design style as the church and contains church 
offices as well as quarters for two priests.

Additions to the complex consist of a small sacristy adjacent to the chapel to the 
north constructed of concrete block in 1953 and a one-story addition to the south 
side of the rectory constructed also of concrete block in 1954. In 1975 the entire 
complex, including the buff colored stone, the brown trim, and the brown lantern 
domes was painted white. Most of the paint on the stone work is now peeling badly.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

St. Patrick Mission Church and Rectory, begun in 1907 and completed in 1910, are 
significant both historically and architecturally. The second church to serve St. 
Patrick's parish, the Franciscan-mission styled architecture represents not only a 
suitable style for the Far West but also the vision shared by its pastor and his 
people of a church whose facilities would serve all people of ,the area, Catholics 
and non-Catholics alike. For this reason.the word "Mission" was incorporated into 
the wording of the cornerstone when it was laid in September, 1907.

St. Patrick's parish was established in 1881 by Bishop Joseph Projectus Machebeuf, 
first Bishop of the See of Denver, and known as the "Apostle of the Rockies."'"""This 
was the first Roman Catholic parish established west of the South Platte River in 
what is now the City of Denver. As the "mother-church" of Northwest Denver, eight 
parishes were eventually established within its original boundaries. The congrega­ 
tion met in various buildings until the first church was completed in 1884. By 1907 
the fast-growing area had several parishes.

Early in 1907, the Rev. Joseph P. Carrigan, pastor of St. Patrick's since 1885, made 
a visit to California to study the design of early mission churches there. He re­ 
turned fired with enthusiasm, and his parishioners enthusiastically shared his dream, 
Land for a new church had been purchased in 1906, and the Denver architectural firm 
of Wagner and Manning was engaged to draw plans for the church and rectory in tradi­ 
tional Mission style. The church building would be the only building of this unique 
style in the City of Denver and was deemed appropriate for the western character of 
the city and to the mission of the parish—to serve all peoples. Because of this 
vision of the mission of the church a small library and reading room were incorpor­ 
ated into the plans in the north wing of the church building. These rooms remained 
dedicated to their original use until 1942 when the proliferation of facilities 
for such purposes allowed the parish to redesignate the rooms for parochial use.

The fiery Father Carrigan had been at odds with his Bishop, Nicholas Matz, for some 
time and now the parishioners and a great part of the Catholic population of Denver 
were drawn into the quarrel. Work on the new church began without the approval of 
the Bishop or his Building Commission, and had to be halted while a compromise was 
worked out over financial arrangements and plans. Hostilities between the two men 
continued, however, and the Bishop was conveniently out of town when the corner­ 
stone for the church was laid later that year. Father Carrigan was eventually re­ 
moved from the parish, but not before seeing the completion of the new church with 
its library and reading room and seeing it begin its use as a mission to all the 
people of the area. The parish never accepted the pastor designated to take 
Carrigan's place and he, too, was replaced within a year.
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Another pastor of note and national reputation, Rev. David T. O'Dwyer, was sent to 
St. Patrick. This gentle and scholarly man proved to be the peacemaker needed, and 
he remained at St. Patrick until 1928, when he became the Assistant Chancellor of 
the Catholic University of America in Washington, D. C., a position he retained until 
he became the Director of the National Shrine of the Immanculate Conception in 
Washington until his retirement in 1940.

Through the years St. Patrick's has been at the center of community life in Northwest 
Denver. When the parish was established a heavy concentration of Irish immigrants 
prompted the naming of the new parish for Ireland's patron saint. When numerous 
families of Italian descent moved into the area served by the church it served them 
well and was instrumental in the establishment of an Italian National parish in the 
area. Many of these Italian immigrants were attracted by the fertile land of the 
Platte Valley for their truck gardens and a number of these early Italian families 
remained within St. Patrick's parish and their cultural patterns have influenced 
the parish over the years.

The parish served both the laboring class of "the flats" of the Platte River valley 
and the upper middle-class professionals who built on the bluffs of Highland. In 
the 1930s and 1940s another cultural group, those of Hispanic heritage, became 
prominent in the parish. By this time St. Patrick's was an "inner city" parish 
losing its original suburban character as the city grew. Each cultural group has 
left a significant mark of their culture and heritage on the area and the parish.

The church and rectory are characterized by their simplicity and purity of design. 
A cloister walk joins the two buildings. Few changes have been made over the years 
but the sacristy of the church was enlarged in 1953 and a year later in 1954 a room 
was built on to the rectory to accommodate a larger staff. At about the same time 
a patio-porch was added at the rear of the rectory and a small porch was enclosed 
off the kitchen to provide more work room.

Among the most significant features of the church are the stained glass windows. 
These windows are made of French and German glass but were designed and executed by 
Ford Brothers Glass Company of Minneapolis, Minnesota. The six windows in the body 
of the church depict the writers of the New Testament and St. Peter, and the large 
window in the choir loft shows Christ in the Garden of Gethsemane. In these windows 
the figures and background are hand painted on stained glass and the border design 
is made up of glass in both solid and mottled colors. There are six small decorative 
windows in other areas of the church and five in the rectory.

Another remarkable feature of the church is the Stations of the Cross brought from the 
old church building to embellish the "new" church. These Stations have carved 
Italian marble frames with the central pictorial panels hand painted, and are believed
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to have been carved and painted in Italy and imported especially for St. Patrick's 
in 1902.

Located on a bluff overlooking the Platte River, this lovely church is a dominant 
feature in the skyline of Northwest Denver. It can be readily seen from the Valley 
Highway (1-25), from much of downtown Denver, and from points in the city. The 
church is distinctive in its architectural features as the only one in Denver built 
in the Mission style.
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Interview with Rev. Theodore Haas, former pastor, St. Patrick Church, Denver

Interview with Rev. Regis McGuire, former assistant pastor, St. Patrick Church, 
Denver.

Copies of Denver newspapers found within the cornerstone box of St. Patrick Church 
when opened in March 1976—Denver Times, Denver Post, Rocky Mountain News, 
published during the week of the laying of the cornerstone.


